ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE

JO NT MEETI NG

HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
SENATE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE

January 27, 2016

1:33 p. m
MEMBERS PRESENT

HOUSE JUDI CI ARY
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Charisse M| lett
Representative Matt C aman
Representati ve Max Gruenberg
SENATE JUDI CI ARY
Senator Lesil MGQuire, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Ma Costello
Senat or Peter M cciche
Senator Bill W el echowski
VEMBERS ABSENT
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Representati ve Neal Foster
Representative Kurt O son (Alternate)
SENATE JUDI CI ARY
Al'l nmenbers present

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  ALASKA CRIM NAL JUSTI CE
REPORT AND RECOMVENDATI ONS

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -1-

COWM SSI ON REI NVESTMENT

January 27, 2016



W TNESS REG STER

SUSANNE DI PI ETRO, Executive Director

Al aska Judi ci al Counci l

Al aska Court System

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented the Alaska Justice Conm ssion
Rei nvest ment Report and Reconmendati ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 33: 32 PM

CHAI R GABRI ELLE LEDOUX called the joint neeting of the House and
Senate Judiciary Standing Comrittees to order at 1:33 p.m
Representatives Lynn and LeDoux and Senators Coghill, Costello,
and McGuire were present at the call to order. Represent ati ves
Mllett, Caman and Guenberg and Senators Mcciche and
W el echowski arrived as the neeting was in progress.

1: 34: 36 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the only order of business would be
t he Present ati on: Al aska Cri m nal Justice Conmm ssi on
Rei nvest ment Report and Recommendati ons.

1: 35: 15 PM

SUSANNE DI Pl ETRO, Executive Director, Alaska Judicial Council,
Al aska Court System advised that the Decenber 2015 Judici al
Rei nvestment Report includes recomendations to nmake Al askan
famlies and communities safer, how to hold crimnal offenders
accountable, how to curb the sky rocketing costs of Al aska's
corrections system and how the State of Alaska can receive a
better return on its public safety dollar investnent. She
turned to slides 2-3 of the PowerPoint presentation and advised
that the commission received information regarding the cost of
not undertaking any crimnal justice, trends in Al aska's prison
popul ati on, and recomendati ons for Al aska's | awrakers.

1: 36: 46 PM

MS. DI PI ETRO pointed out that prison growh in Al aska has grown
27 percent during the last 10 years, the cost of corrections is
approximately $300 nillion per year. In the event the State of
Al aska does nothing and these trends continue, she pointed out,
the state will house 6,500 prisoners within the next few years

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 2- January 27, 2016



and that increased cost would be approximately $169 mllion.
Al t hough the population of Alaska is increasing, prison growh
is increasing three tines faster than Al aska' s population and
data shows that Al askans are not receiving a good public safety
return on the state's investnent because al nost two out of three
rel eased offenders return to prison within three years.

CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether the prison population is rising due
to nore offenses subject to prison or because |aw enforcenent
has been doing a better job of catching people.

MS. DI PIETRO responded that the prison population is rising for
three reasons which she offered as before, during, and after
i ncarceration. She explained that the "before" reason is that
peopl e being held pre-trial has increased 81 percent. She noted
that 28 percent are unable to nmake bail and are taking up prison
beds, and are now staying | onger than previously.

1: 39: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whet her her research had focused
on the constitutional problem resulting in the poor going to
jail without a trial.

M5. DI PIETRO responded that the Judicial Council's research is
contained within the report and that the current pre-trial
systemis related to noney. She stated that generally during a

bail hearing the defendant receives a noney bail; therefore,
Al aska's bail systemis related to how nuch nobney a person can
pay. She pointed out that the thrust of the commission's

recommendations on pre-trial is that instead of relating rel ease
to nmoney, that the release is related to risk.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether any research has been
performed on the constitutionality of the noney bail system

MS. DI Pl ETRO answer ed no.

SENATOR COGHILL pointed out to Representative Guenberg that
within the Alaska State Constitution bail is required and is a
matter of where and how it is applied. Under the constitution,
Al aska is bail specific and he said in going through the process
he will show how that has been applied in Al aska and how Al aska
can do better, he expl ai ned.

1: 42: 15 PM

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 3- January 27, 2016



MS. DI PIETRO said the conprehensive and full scale study of the
system from top to bottom was the nobst thorough study that
possibly has been performed in several decades, and the
commi ssioners found it quite eye opening. She referred to
"during” with regard to the convicted and sentenced popul ation
and said that 31 percent of felony offenders stay |onger than 10
years ago which is driving the increased sentenced popul ation.
She referred to "after” and said these individuals served their
sentence and have been released on probation or parole wth
supervision and with rules they nust follow or be returned to
prison for violating those rules. It turns out, she noted, that
22 percent of the returned people in prison violated rules of
probation or parole that were technical violations. She
expl ai ned that technical violations are not new crimnmes, but such
violations as a dirty drug test, failing to attend an
appoi ntment, or failing to maintain a job.

CHAIR LEDOUX interjected that nobst drugs are controlled
substances and pointed out that a dirty drug test would be a new
crine.

M5. DI PIETRO replied that it could be charged as a new crine,
but typically it is treated as a violation of probation or
par ol e. She offered that three-fourths of the individuals
entering Alaska's prisons are convicted of non-violent offenses
whi ch was an "eye-opener"” for the commi ssioners.

1:45:16 PM

M5. DIPIETRO turned to slides 4-5 and rem nded the committee
that the Alaska Crimnal Justice Conm ssion was created by the
| egislature within Senate Bill 54, July 2014. The commi ssion's
mandate was to evaluate and make recomendations involving
crimnal laws and practices while keeping in mnd the inportant

goals of public safety, of f ender rehabilitation, victim
restitution, and reducing costs. The 13 nenbers of the
commi ssion include: Senator John Coghill, Representative Ws

Keller from the Ilegislative branch, three judges from the
judicial branch, Departnent of Corrections and the Departnent of
Public Safety commi ssioners, and the Attorney GCeneral from the
adm ni strative branch. Also, Lieutenant Kris Sell of the Juneau
Police Departnent, Public Defender Agency's Quinlan Steiner,
Chair Greg Razo from Cook Inlet Region, Inc., Brenda Stanfill
from the Interior A aska Center for Non- Vi ol ent Li vi ng
representing victinms, and Jeff Jesse from the Alaska Mental
Heal t h Trust. She related that Lieutenant Kris Sell comented

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -4- January 27, 2016



that she was surprised during the process to agree with Public
Def ender Steiner on a nunber of issues in this report.

MS. DI PIETRO advised that the conmmssion let the data, studies

and docunented experiences in other states drive its
del i berati ons and reconmendati ons, thereby comng to a consensus
on 21 conprehensive reconmendati ons. She said that should the

package of 21 recomrendations be adopted and beconme |aw, they
are projected to save approximately $424 nmllion over the next
10 years, and sonme of that savings is "averted savings, and sone
of that 1is actual savings from reductions in the prison
popul ation. "

1: 48: 35 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL added that the Judicial Council was chosen to
house the work of the comm ssion. He stressed that the Judici al

Council was a significant part of the process because it hel ped
manage, mnaintain, arrange neetings, and unpack neetings, reach
into agencies, listen to conmm ssioners to determne how to dea

with the issues, and the Judicial Council also had the Pew
Charitable Trusts working as a hel per.

M5. DIPIETRO pointed out that one of the Judicial Council's
constitutional duties is to conduct studies to inprove the
adm nistration of justice, and as the executive director
expressed her appreciation in being involved in the effort and
said she hopes to continue to be of assistance. She advi sed
that the Public Safety Performance Project, Pew Charitable
Trusts provided technical assistance, and that the research and
t echni cal assistance was a partnership Dbetween the Pew
Charitable Trusts' experts and Al askan expertise and agenci es.

MS. DI Pl ETRO di scussed the comm ssion's process and advi sed that
it was involved in a great deal of outreach, traveled to None
and Kotzebue and had round tables there, visited the Anvil
Mountain Correctional Center and spoke wth prisoners and

correctional officers. The comm ssion held over 50 advertised
public neetings where nenbers of the public would attend and
contri bute. The conmmi ssion also sponsored two victim round

tables due to its concern about the perspectives and priorities
of victinms in Al aska. She noted that the round tables were in
Fai rbanks and Bethel and that a report was generated from those
round tables which is on the Judicial Council website under the
Crimnal Justice Conmm ssion tab.

1: 52: 00 PM

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 5- January 27, 2016



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI  asked whether the definition of "non-
violent offender" changed over the years, and asked her to
define it in regard to her statement that 75 percent of the
prison popul ati on are non-viol ent offenders.

M5. DIPIETRO offered that she was not aware whether the
definition had changed ... a non-violent offender is soneone not
convicted of a person crine. For exanple, she explained, for
pur poses of the comm ssion, a non-violent offender is soneone
convicted of a drug or alcohol offense in this category, as
opposed to an offender that commtted a violent act against
anot her person or put someone physically at risk.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked whet her her definition of non-viol ent
offender is simlar to the definitions used in nobst other
st at es.

M5. DI PI ETRO advised that for purposes of this analysis, yes
She remarked that the legislative |eadership asked the
comm ssion to determ ne recomendations that would reduce the

prison population by averting all future prison growh, to
reduce the current prison population by 15 percent, and by 25
percent. She described those charges as the goal posts set and

said the comm ssioners took it very seriously and thought very
hard in their recommendations about how can to get to the 15,
20, and 25 percent reductions while preserving public safety.
She stressed that this was not an exercise in just saving noney
or enptying prisons but r at her an exercise in making
recomendati ons that could reduce the prison population while
preserving public safety by reducing recidivism

M5. DIPIETRO referred to the lower half of slide 5 and descri bed
it as a quick overview of the conmm ssion's process, as follows:
the system assessnent was very extensive; the Pew Charitable
Trusts brought research from other states; the conmm ssion
engaged in site visits and round tables and received input from
experts in Alaska; and because these areas are so conplex the
comm ssion broke itself into three work groups regarding pre-
trial, sentenced, and the post-conviction popul ation.

M5. DIPIETRO referred to slide 7 and said she would provide a
"broad overview' of the principles and recommendations in the
report, as follows: whether non-violent pre-trial defendants can
safely be released and supervised while awaiting trial; and can
the state divert Ilowlevel non-violent offenders away from
prison and into other types of intervention. For exanpl e,

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 6- January 27, 2016



community based interventions, comrunity based supervision, non-
prison alternatives, conf i nenent in comunity residential
centers, or electronic nonitoring, she said. She then expl ai ned
that this would be with the principle that prison beds are
expensive and that the state wants to preserve them as nuch as
possi ble for the nore violent offenders with |onger and stricter
supervi si on

1: 57: 26 PM

M5. DIPIETRO said that another principle included review ng
sentencing laws and noted that sentences for felons had
increased quite a bit in ten years. The question was whet her
sentences on the books for felons could be brought nore in line
with sentences from other states, or in line with Al aska' s |aws
in previous years. Wth regard to the community supervision
side when the offenders are released, she said, the conmm ssion
would |ike them nonitored and assisted to becone productive
menbers of society rather than just let out to reoffend. A
principle there was to inpose swift and certain sanctions for
people released who violate their conditions of probation or
par ol e. She said the conm ssion made recommendati ons about how
to strengthen supervision in a comunity and strengthen
mechani snms  probation officers use so they could respond nore
appropriately to the [rel eased] people in the community.

1: 59: 25 PM

M5. DIPIETRO referred to slide 8 and explained that an inportant
and critical portion of the package is if the legislature were
to adopt this package there would be savings; however, sonme of
t hese recomendations will not have the outcones expected unless
there is a nodest anount of reinvestnent in resources. For
exanpl e, she said, if it nmakes sense to rel ease non-violent |ow
| evel risk defendants while awaiting trial to free-up part of
the 28 percent of the beds they are taking up, there have to be
nore tools in a conmunity for assessing their risk and
supervising them when they are required pre-trial supervision.
A recommendation is to reinvest in comunity supervision for
pre-trial services because their release doesn't work well
unless there is a way to assess their risk. The commi ssion
enphasi zed that the reinvestnent piece is a nodest portion of
the savings yet inportant and critical to the whole package
hol di ng together to receive the expected outcones.

2:01: 09 PM

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -7- January 27, 2016



CHAI R LEDOUX asked whether she was saying that only non-viol ent
def endants be considered for pre-trial release or defendants not
convi cted but charged with a violent crine.

M5. DIPIETRO replied that the conm ssion received information
from a few other pioneering states working in "Pre-Trial Risk
Assessment” and offered that the risk assessnments would include
factors such as, the type of offense they are charged with and
their crimnal history. She said that the point is that other
states are having good results and the comm ssion recomends
trying pre-trial risk assessnments in Al aska and developing a
tool conpletely tailored for Al aska.

SENATOR COGHI LL added that currently bail is the question and
bail is probably arbitrary when considered across Al aska. He
opined that this would offer a tool that indicated risk of not
showng [in court] and risk to public safety. People are
assurmed innocent before found guilty but there are risks which
is why sone people remain in jail. In that bail has been
available to people with very high risk, this would put a
di fferent approach on how Al aska views the pre-trial popul ation

he said. Pew Charitable Trusts brought in, from all over
Anmerica, places where this approach has proven practices and
data driven with good outcones, he said.

2:04: 09 PM

SENATOR M CCICHE related that when discussing non-violent or
violent crimnals whether there is a spreadsheet as to how it is
divide it up because a repeat offender with many DUs is a
violent crimnal due the potential [of harn], or soneone wth
drug offenses to the point of endangering their famly due to
abuse or neglect. He said "it's not that sinple, is it?"

MS. DI Pl ETRO answered that his comments make a | ot of sense and
explained that the Pew Charitable Trusts had to categorize

offenses as violent, non-violent, alcohol, theft, property
of fenses, or [another] person offenses when analyzing DOC s
records which may be different from risk. She offered that a

person with a couple of DU's would, as she understands the way
the Pew Charitable Trusts categorized offenses for purposes of
anal yzes, would have been in the category of alcohol offenses.
She explained that when the defendant cane up for pre-trial
rel ease the defendant nmay be assessed as high risk and that when
she was discussing the categories of people in prison, those
were categories that Pew Charitable Trusts perforned to help the
commi ssion understand what crines people had commtted while

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 8- January 27, 2016



they were in prison that did not necessarily include how risky
t hose peopl e woul d be.

SENATOR M CCICHE said that when M. D Pietro discussed the
proportion of non-violent crimnals in prison it |eaves the
i npression that nost of us would support them not serving in a
brick and nortar prison. He pointed out that that is not the
case as many falling into the non-violent category are very high
risk to people outside of the institution. He said "It is kind
of the reason for ny confusion."

M5. DI PIETRO agreed that it was a good point which |ead her to

substance abuse. She said that nmany of people cycling in and
out of the correctional facilities have substance abuse probl ens
with drug possession or dealing and al cohol problens. One of

the main points of +the conmssion is that treatnent for
subst ance abuse nust not be to confine people in prison because
it is expensive, the alternative has to be to give them access
to treatnment so that their underlying problens can be addressed.
She said that Lieutenant Sell discussed this issue and reported
from her own experience that she is arresting nany of the sane
peopl e over and over again. Typically m sdenmeanor defendants do
not stay in prison long enough to receive drug and al cohol
treatnment, are released and not supported in the conmmunity, and
go back to their sanme old habits, so Lieutenant Sell has to
arrest them again, she expressed. Qobvi ously, she pointed out,
with a 64 percent recidivism rate in Alaska the cycle is not
bei ng broken. Research has shown that people receiving
treatment for their wunderlying problenms desist from crimnal
behavi or. The principle is that there has to be treatnent
avai l able for those with substance abuse and stop the revol ving
door, she renarked.

2: 09: 08 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI expressed that this is a very inportant
di scussion and the state nust provide treatnment if it wants a

system to reduce sentences. Hs frustration, he said, is
heari ng about soneone being arrested 30-50 tinmes for a variety
of offenses, often substance abuse related, and finally killing
someone. It is critical, if the legislature is going to nake a
serious effort about this that it has to focus attention on
subst ance abuse treatnment. He opined there will be people, for
what ever reason, the state will be unable to help and those

peopl e need to be | ocked up to protect society.

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -9- January 27, 2016



M5. DIPIETRO responded that certainly the |aw enforcenent
menbers of the commission would agree because they are
frustrated al so. She offered that there are ways to intervene,
such as therapeutic courts that could be used nore often, and
substance abuse treatnent in the comunity. She agreed that
there nust be treatnent in the facilities but particularly in
the community because many, if offered the opportunity, would
want to becone nore productive nenbers of society. Studies show
that keeping defendants longer in prison does not decrease
recidivism and what caused them to desist from crimnal
behavior was to address their wunderlying problem which is
usual | y substance abuse or nental health or both, she stressed.

2:11: 30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to Ms. DiPietro's comrent that
many people are in prison due to a petition to revoke (PTR) at

approxi mately 60 percent.

M5. DIPIETRO clarified that it was approximately 25 percent of
the people in prison on any given day.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG opined that what is being dealt there
is failure to keep appoi ntnents.

M5. DIPIETRO replied that it is one kind of technical violation.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked whether the conm ssion reviewed
ot her ways of hel pi ng peopl e keep their appoi ntnents.

M5. DI PIETRO answered that the conmmssion did review research

show ng t hat peopl e are nor e likely to keep their
appoi ntments/court date if they receive a telephone, text, or
emai | rem nder. A recommendation within the report is to

institute a rem nder system regarding court date appearances,
she sai d.

M5. DIPIETRO agreed wth Representative Guenberg that the
system woul d need to be autonated.

2:13:10 PM

M5. DI PIETRO enphasized that the very inportant reinvestnent
i ssue or resources in the comunity issue to the comm ssion was
to provide services and resources to prevent violence, support
victinms, and advance victim priorities. It was apparent at the
round tables that many victinse wish to see prevention services

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 10- January 27, 2016



so there would be fewer victins. She reiterated that it is a
very inportant portion of the comm ssion's recommendations and
identifying people who could be contained and rehabilitated
outside of an institution and the saving from that could be
rei nvest ed.

2:14: 43 PM

M5. DIPIETRO referred to the lower half of slide 8 that depicted
the comm ssion's predictions for the package. She noted that if

this package is adopted, the green Iline indicates how nmany
pri son beds woul d be saved over the next few years. She said it
is a 21 percent reduction, and approximately $424 mllion in
savi ngs.

M5. DIPIETRO replied to Chair LeDoux's question that it
represents a 10 year period - 2024. She continued that support
services includes strengthening reentry, which is a sinple
concept . She said that national research by the Judicial
Counci| showed that when people are released from prison al nost
every person who is going to reoffend has gone back to prison
within the first three nonths to a year. It was an eye opener

she said, that when first released they msstep and the idea is
to offer reentry support and services as they need a place to
sleep, get a job, find housing, reunify with estranged famly.
Therefore, they need services at the beginning because that is
the tine they are nost vul nerable to violating.

CHAI R LEDOUX commented that if a released prisoner nanages to
stay out of prison for a year after they' ve been rel eased they
generally make it.

M5. DI PIETRO responded "that is the truth" from their studies
and the research is supported nationally as well.

2:18: 08 PM

SENATOR M CCICHE said a year is clearly a significant m |l estone
and asked whether there is an average period of tine where
typi cal recidivismoccurs under a year.

M5. DI Pl ETRO opi ned that she did not know whet her she could cal
it an average, but alnost all of the recidivism that happens
within the first three nonths is approximately 90 percent.

SENATOR M CCI CHE advised that he had reviewed the DHSS budget
and denographics of sonme of the people in need and al though this

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -11- January 27, 2016



conmi ssion focused on DOC, there are costs for DPS, DO.L, and
nost likely DHSS costs for the remaining famly nmenbers. He
said it would be interesting to pull those departnents into the
anal ysi s because recidivismis expensive.

M5. DIPIETRO said it would be hard to do but very worthwhile.
2:20: 05 PM

M5. DIPIETRO referred to the issue of limting the use of prison
for lowlevel msdenmeanor offenders and reiterated that research
has shown that putting these offenders in prison can nmake them
worse. She described the research as an eye-opener for a nunber
of comm ssioners and offered the anal ogy of "putting the m nnows
with the sharks."

SENATOR COGHI LL related that as a nenber of the conm ssion he
heard that if there are other ways of accountability, such as
ankle nonitoring or constant reporting, an individual my not
| ose their job, housing, or the ability to have transportation

He described these as "huge" factors in noving along by taking
them out of society by putting them in jail at a point where

they lose their ability to actually repair thenselves. He
poi nted out that housing and a job are inportant issues during
reentry. Senator Coghill advised that the conm ssion reviewed a
range of accountability issues, which wll probably be in a
bill, and noted that sonetinmes the people thenselves would
prefer just sitting in jail, but there is an accountability that

keeps them noving forward. He pointed out that just using seat
time to change soneone's behavior has not worked as well as
ot her ways of accountability.

2:22: 44 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked whether the commission factored in
people intentionally being arrested to receive nedical care, a
warm pl ace to sl eep, or food.

M5. DI Pl ETRO responded that the comm ssion did receive anecdot al
informati on, but no statistical studies or data.

Comm ssioner Stanfill nmentioned that in Fairbanks there are
peopl e who cannot receive assistance or support and may actually
go into prison. She stressed that the |ow | evel offenders would
not be released to their own devices, but would be held
accountable wthin the community, which is |ess expensive.
Rather than being in prison, there 1is +the potential to

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -12- January 27, 2016



rehabilitate via therapeutic courts that have been shown to be
effective and could be used nore, electronic nonitoring, and
other kinds of checking in with supervisors while the person
| ooks for work, reintegrates wth an estranged famly,
potentially pay child support, and/or support their famly.
When incarcerated, these inportant issues of bringing people

back into the community and living a productive life can be
difficult. It is easier and less expensive with community
resources and support and, she pointed out, is part of the

rei nvest ment piece.
2:24:50 PM

SENATOR M CCICHE related that he was allowed to attend an
intense group therapy session for three hours. The | ow1 evel
subst ance abuse offenders discussed things they |earned inside
such as, Dbetter skills at avoiding detection while wusing,
getting nore contacts and obtaining substances, and nore
effective illegal ways to earn noney for their habit when
rel eased. He remarked that the "saddest" point is that
substances were often available inside anyway which didn't
decrease the debt for their famly by continuing their habits.
He described the people in the session as very nice people that
had taken a wong turn and didn't know how to get back.

MS. DI PIETRO described Senator Mcciche's information on the
ground as interesting and said that is exactly what the
conmm ssi on heard.

2:26: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAVMAN offered an anecdotal incident wth a
client who seened to get arrested for shoplifting in Novenber
and Decenber and would receive l|longer and |onger m sdenmeanor
sentences wusually being released sonetine in the spring. He
said that using DOC dollars is an expensive way to provide a
war m bed.

2:27:56 PM

M5. DIPIETRO opined that there is a difficult problem in
determining how to notivate an individual's behavior. She
explained that the comm ssion is reconmending the ways others
have found to work nost of the tine. Interestingly, those tend
to be less expensive ways in the communities and she stressed
"provided that the services are there" because these people
cannot be rel eased without the types of support they need.

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 13- January 27, 2016



M5. DIPIETRO referred to the lower half of slide 9 and opined
that if Alaska is able to pass a significant reform package,
free additional technical assistance would be available to help
i npl ement sone of the recomendations. She reiterated that a
pre-trial risk assessnent tool is used in other states, and that
any such tool would have to be tailored for Alaska first and
could not be put in place inmediately. She advised that the
Judicial Council staff has been in touch with one of the "main
foundati ons"” creating risk assessnents in other states, and they
tentatively indicated a wllingness to work with Al aska. She
said it's a lot of work but the resources could be there for
Al aska to acconplish it.

M5. DIPIETRO referred to "things we already know' with regard to
community supervision and if trying to control soneone's
behavior it is helpful to have a stick and doubly helpful to
have a carrot with the goal of encouraging people to have good
behavi or and a consequence to not behaving. She said the carrot
pi ece of the tool could strengthen DOC when supervising people,
and the question is whether a person on probation could be
incentivized to conplete all of the tasks they nust conplete by
receiving conpliance credits. In other words, she explained, if
a person does the things ordered, such as paying restitution,
seeking treatnent, and paying fines, could they be then be
rewarded by getting off of probation nore quickly. She
indicated that this would have a donm no effect in that conplying
of fenders com ng off probation would nean one | ess person on the
probation officer's case |load, and the officer could then focus
nore closely on the people that are not so conpliant. The
comm ssion recommended that there could be conpliance credits
for people out on supervision who need to get busy for their own
rehabilitation, and also for the restoration of society such as
paying fines or restitution. She said that currently there is a
nmet hod of penalizing themand no the carrot.

2:32:35 PM

CHAI R LEDQUX asked how often a probationer is required to see
their probation officer.

M5. DI PI ETRO said she does not know the answer, but believes it
vari es dependi ng upon the circunstances.

CHAI R LEDOUX noted that possibly it is counter-productive when

the act of seeing their probation officers interferes with them
trying to hold a job. She said she is not suggesting there

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -14- January 27, 2016



shoul dn't be probation officers and asked about the flexibility
avai |l abl e when scheduling appointnments if soneone does have a
j ob.

M5. DI PIETRO remarked the people have reported being "over
programmed” in that they have so many appointnents to go to that
it is difficult to do what they need to do.

2:33: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN advi sed that sone offenders, at a higher
risk for reoffending, have an intensive probation or parole
release program that can nmean daily neetings wth their
probation officer which can include drugs tests every day in the
early stages and as it gets better they ease back on how

frequently they have to be drug tested. O hers released my
only have once a week or once every other week and as they
improve it goes down to once a nonth. He said a bill last year

addressed the issue of people working in different conmunities
than their probation officer worked and that their check in
requirenents limted their ability to have jobs. He related
that there are definitely tinmes those requirenent get in the way
of their work opportunities and there has to be flexibility for
that, and at the same tinme their work can't be an excuse that
they can't see their probation officer. To keep offenders from
reoffending in that one year there rust be intensive
supervision, especially early on, but the reward system would
suggest that if the person is doing better they won't have to
see the probation officer as often, he surm sed.

2:35: 10 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL referred to Recommendations 12-18 of the Al aska
Crimnal Justice Comm ssion Justice Reinvestnent Report and said
the discussion is regarding tools that give better risks and
needs assessnents in prograns, how to supervise the higher risk
in a different manner, and how to receive good tinme credit on
probation. He pointed out that part of the justice reinvestnent
here is reinvesting in sonme of those things, thereby decreasing
the probation and parole | oad. The risk assessnent tool wll
show a better way of managing people within that system and
rather than punping up the anount of probation officers, take
care of the people at the highest risk first and then nove
along, he opined. He noted that the commttee will see ways to
encourage good behavior and hold people accountable. He noted
that are a "couple of tweaks in there" including capping sone of

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -15- January 27, 2016



the ways to Petition to Revoke Probation (PTRP) people and hold
them accountable a little differently.

2:36:42 PM

SENATOR M CCICHE opined that it is likely a person will offend
nore as a young person and that many of them have the potentia

to turn their lives around and succeed. He asked whether DOC
has a system of applying a probability of success wth
i ncarcerated individuals that respond to treatnment where sone of
the credits my end up with a productive individual who can be
proud of what they are doing in their lives, support their
famly, and leave it all behind. He further asked whet her DOC
invests in that kind of ranking to provide nore support for
sormeone with a higher probability of success.

M5. DIPIETRO replied that she does not know the answer, but DOCC
does perform risk assessments and that approximately 40 percent
of the people assessed are deenmed |lowrisk. She reiterated the
concept of how likely is that person to reoffend which is a
little different than Senator M cciche asked, but that would be
the closest thing she is aware of. The state and DOC is nore
invested now in trying to systematically assess people for the
i kelihood of reoffending. She reiterated Senator Coghill and
said that a tool the comm ssion recommended is on the stick side
of things for people who do violate ... the comm ssion received
information that people going in on a supervision violation were
spending on an average 106 days back incarcerated for each

vi ol ati on. She described that as "kind of a long tinme"
especially in light of evidence which shows that they don't
really need to spend that |ong. They do need to be held
account abl e, she stressed, but if soneone comes out on

supervision and gets off on the wong foot, jerk them back very
qui ckly, get them in there, get their attention, and then get
them back out to try again, and if they ness up they conme back
for a longer tinme. The individuals sort thenselves out and for
the ones who learned after the first consequence and ones who
needed a few nore consequences to get the idea. She said the
conmi ssi on recomends supporting this principle.

2:41: 03 PM

M5. DI Pl ETRO pointed out that the conm ssioners commented on the
intensity of comng together with so nuch information and
struggling over these very conplicated and uncertain issues that
many states have struggled with. There are no sinple answers,
she pointed out, but these are the best answers the conm ssion

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 16- January 27, 2016



could come up wth, they' ve been vetted, discussed with many
st akehol ders, discussed thoroughly and with great enotion and
care within the comm ssion neetings. She enphasi zed that there
are 21 consensus recomendations that all of the conm ssioners
with different perspectives agreed upon. She said they wll
wait to have the recommendations in the bill.

2:42: 37 PM

SENATOR COGHI LL advi sed that as a comm ssion nenber, there were
50-sonme neetings broken down into sub-groups wth busy people
who are judges and |aw enforcenent people, including Geg Razo
who canme from the Al aska Native Justice Center spent "hours and
hours and hours"” away from work as did everyone else wth a real
willingness to roll up their sleeves and tackle it. Simlar to
the legislative process, discussing one policy affects nmany
ot her policies, thereby making staying focused a major task and
the Judicial Council did it very well, he acknow edged. The
Judicial Council is part of a crimnal justice working group
that discusses public court nmnmanagenent, police interventions,
and do not recommend policy and in that regard, he explained,
when the commi ssion cane in many of the sane discussions had
al ready happened but this is a way to filter them up to policy

cal |l s. He noted that these reconmendati ons are consensus itens
and they nust yet be determned to work at a technical |evel

and that the legislature will be asking how it works with pre-
trial, sentencing for persons for violence, supervi si on
i ntervention, oversight and accountability which have two very
different functions, and reinvestnent. He explained that
Recommendations 1-4 are pre-trial, Recomendation 5-11 are

prison for violent versus non-violent, Recomendations 12-18
deal with supervision interventions, and Recommendations 19-21
are related to a different approach to oversight and
accountability, and reinvestnent then follows on. Dependi ng
upon the location, the cost of a prison bed is approximately
$140 per night, and if the state can save that bed and reinvest
$50 or $80 and have better safety outcones then that is a good
focus, he expressed. As the report shows, the comm ssion | ooked
at it as a body of thought and he related that many of the
recommendations in conming to as a consensus necessarily had to
be at a higher level than what the legislature will work at and
hamer out the issues word-by-word.

2:45:55 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX offered that she, as the House Judiciary Standing
Conmittee Chairman, is looking forward to working on this bil

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -17- January 27, 2016



as it may be one of the nost inportant things the commttee does
and perhaps the | egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered that as the committee noves
forward it should focus on what works and have feedback with an
opportunity to change things. He said that provisions in sone
of these bills would require reporting and sunset clauses. He
asked what |l egislators can do to hel p nmake the system work.

2:47:19 PM

VB. DI PIETRO responded that one of the nobst inportant
recommendations of the report is that there be an accountability
and oversight body established. Should the |egislature nmake
t hese significant changes, the state is entitled to receive the
better outcones prom sed; therefore, nonitoring is necessary to
determ ne whether they are working or not, she remarked. She
expressed that it wuld be wong and sad to enact these
significant changes and not have a way of deciding whether the
prison bed reductions, and |ow|evel offenders not spending as
long in prison caused the revolving door to go faster, or did
the changes cause it to stop. She advised that the conmm ssion
recommends establishing perfornmance neasures as to the ongoing
process, what shoul d happen, which way the nunbers should nove,
collecting information and reporting back to the |egislature and
governor on how the changes are working. |In the event there are
uni nt ended consequences, the oversight body would conmunicate to
the legislature so that tweaks or adjustnents could be made in
the | aw, she described this as very inportant. The
conmm ssioners are very conmtted to the success of these
recomendati ons, she noted.

2:49: 33 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE offered her appreciation and conmented that "we"
al so stand conmtted to working on these issues. She suggest ed
that in noving forward, to think of the 21 recomrendations as
di screte categories, the goals, and what concrete decisions can
be made today. She referenced the idea about a pilot project
and screening those in a higher risk in pre-trial status, as a
concrete recomrendation with sone proven success behind it in
other states. She also suggested clearly allowing |aw nakers to
see links, dollar anpbunts, and the decisions |egislators need to
make. This is a very ethereal concept and everyone on the
commttee would agree that the state spends too nmuch noney, and
for the dollars spent the results are not good from both a cost
and humani stic point of view She remarked that the |legislators

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES - 18- January 27, 2016



are aware changes need to be nmde, but when getting into the
details over the last 15 years people can end up in political
debates over things such as, being pro-victim pro-crine, pro-
defendant, and too soft or hard on crinme. She opined that if it
could be narrowed down and slow rolled over a period of three
years with concrete recommendations and data behind them and
then "what is your ask specifically,”" she opined that [the
recomrendations] wll get there. For exanple, she pointed to
the 24/7 program which a decade ago the |egislature believed
was too risky because sonething could happen and yet the result
has been 99 percent success with a data driven process that can
be reported. She suggested building on "those kinds of things"
so that there is nore success at the front end before you start
t aki ng the bigger philosophical risks.

2:52:26 PM
ADJ OURNVENT
There being no further business before the comnmttee, the Joint

House and Senate Judiciary Standing Conmittee was adjourned at
2:52 p.m

JT. H'S JUD COW TTEES -19- January 27, 2016



